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(c) Nothing in this section authorizes 
the opening of a correspondent account 
or payable-through account for a for-
eign financial institution listed in Ap-
pendix A to this part. 

NOTE TO § 561.504: This section does not au-
thorize a U.S. financial institution to 
unblock property or interests in property, or 
to engage in any transaction or dealing in 
property or interests in property, blocked 
pursuant to any other part of this chapter in 
the process of closing a correspondent ac-
count or a payable-through account for a for-
eign financial institution listed in appendix 
A to this part. See § 561.101. 

Subpart F—Reports 

§ 561.601 Records and reports. 
For provisions relating to required 

records and reports, see part 501, sub-
part C, of this chapter. 

Subpart G—Penalties 
§ 561.701 Penalties. 

(a) Civil Penalties. (1) As set forth in 
section 104(c) of the Comprehensive 
Iran Sanctions, Accountability, and Di-
vestment Act of 2010 (Pub. L. 111–195) 
(‘‘CISADA’’), a civil penalty not to ex-
ceed the amount set forth in section 
206(b) of the International Emergency 
Economic Powers Act (‘‘IEEPA’’)(50 
U.S.C. 1705(b)) may be imposed on any 
person who violates, attempts to vio-
late, conspires to violate, or causes a 
violation of any order or regulation 
issued pursuant to § 561.201(b) or of the 
prohibition in § 561.201(c) or of any li-
cense set forth in or issued pursuant to 
this part concerning such order, regu-
lation, or prohibition. 

(2) As set forth in section 104(d) of 
CISADA, a civil penalty not to exceed 
the amount set forth in section 206(b) 
of IEEPA may be imposed on a U.S. fi-
nancial institution if: 

(i) A person owned or controlled by 
the U.S. financial institution violates, 
attempts to violate, conspires to vio-
late, or causes a violation of the prohi-
bition in § 561.202 or of any order, regu-
lation, or license set forth in or issued 
pursuant to this part concerning such 
prohibition; and 

(ii) The U.S. financial institution 
knew or should have known that the 
person violated, attempted to violate, 

conspired to violate, or caused a viola-
tion of such prohibition. 

NOTE TO PARAGRAPH (a) OF § 561.701: As of 
the date of publication in the FEDERAL REG-
ISTER of the final rule adding this part to 31 
CFR chapter V, August 16, 2010, IEEPA pro-
vides for a maximum civil penalty not to ex-
ceed the greater of $250,000 or an amount 
that is twice the amount of the transaction 
that is the basis of the violation with respect 
to which the penalty is imposed. 

(b) Criminal penalty. As set forth in 
section 104(c) of CISADA, a person who 
willfully commits, willfully attempts 
to commit, or willfully conspires to 
commit, or aids or abets in the com-
mission of a violation of any order or 
regulation issued pursuant to 
§ 561.201(b) or of the prohibition in 
§ 561.201(c) shall, upon conviction, be 
fined not more than $1,000,000, or if a 
natural person, be imprisoned for not 
more than 20 years, or both. 

(c) Adjustments to penalty amounts. (1) 
The civil penalties provided in IEEPA 
are subject to adjustment pursuant to 
the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation 
Adjustment Act of 1990 (Pub. L. 101–410, 
as amended, 28 U.S.C. 2461 note). 

(2) The criminal penalties provided in 
IEEPA are subject to adjustment pur-
suant to 18 U.S.C. 3571. 

(d) Attention is also directed to 18 
U.S.C. 1001, which provides that ‘‘who-
ever, in any matter within the jurisdic-
tion of the executive, legislative, or ju-
dicial branch of the Government of the 
United States, knowingly and willfully 
falsifies, conceals, or covers up by any 
trick, scheme, or device a material 
fact; makes any materially false, ficti-
tious, or fraudulent statement or rep-
resentation; or makes or uses any false 
writing or document knowing the same 
to contain any materially false, ficti-
tious, or fraudulent statement or 
entry’’ shall be fined under title 18, 
United States Code, imprisoned, or 
both. 

(e) Violations of this part may also 
be subject to relevant provisions of 
other applicable laws. 

§ 561.702 Pre-Penalty Notice; settle-
ment. 

(a) When required. If the Office of For-
eign Assets Control has reason to be-
lieve that there has occurred a viola-
tion of any provision of this part or a 
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violation of the provisions of any li-
cense, ruling, regulation, order, direc-
tion, or instruction issued by or pursu-
ant to the direction or authorization of 
the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant 
to this part or otherwise under IEEPA 
and determines that a civil monetary 
penalty may be warranted, the Office 
of Foreign Assets Control may issue a 
Pre-Penalty Notice informing the al-
leged violator of the agency’s intent to 
impose a monetary penalty. A Pre-Pen-
alty Notice shall be in writing. The 
Pre-Penalty Notice may be issued 
whether or not another agency has 
taken any action with respect to the 
matter. For a description of the con-
tents of a Pre-Penalty Notice, see ap-
pendix A to part 501 of this chapter. 

(b)(1) Right to respond. An alleged vio-
lator has the right to respond to a Pre- 
Penalty Notice by making a written 
presentation to the Office of Foreign 
Assets Control. For a description of the 
information that should be included in 
such a response, see appendix A to part 
501 of this chapter. 

(2) Deadline for response. A response 
to a Pre-Penalty Notice must be made 
within 30 days of the date of service of 
the Pre-Penalty Notice. The failure to 
submit a response within the applica-
ble time period set forth in this para-
graph (b) shall be deemed to be a waiv-
er of the right to respond. 

(i) Computation of time for response. A 
response to a Pre-Penalty Notice must 
be postmarked or date-stamped by the 
U.S. Postal Service (or foreign postal 
service, if mailed abroad) or courier 
service provider (if transmitted to the 
Office of Foreign Assets Control by 
courier) on or before the 30th day after 
the postmark date on the envelope in 
which the Pre-Penalty Notice was 
mailed. If the Pre-Penalty Notice was 
personally delivered by a non-U.S. 
Postal Service agent authorized by the 
Office of Foreign Assets Control, a re-
sponse must be postmarked or date- 
stamped on or before the 30th day after 
the date of delivery. 

(ii) Extensions of time for response. If a 
due date falls on a federal holiday or 
weekend, that due date is extended to 
include the following business day. Any 
other extensions of time will be grant-
ed, at the discretion of the Office of 
Foreign Assets Control, only upon spe-

cific request to the Office of Foreign 
Assets Control. 

(3) Form and method of response. A re-
sponse to a Pre-Penalty Notice need 
not be in any particular form, but it 
must be typewritten and signed by the 
alleged violator or a representative 
thereof, must contain information suf-
ficient to indicate that it is in response 
to the Pre-Penalty Notice, and must 
include the Office of Foreign Assets 
Control identification number listed on 
the Pre-Penalty Notice. A copy of the 
written response may be sent by fac-
simile, but the original also must be 
sent to the Office of Foreign Assets 
Control Enforcement Penalties Divi-
sion by mail or courier and must be 
postmarked or date-stamped in accord-
ance with paragraph (b)(2) of this sec-
tion. 

(c) Settlement. Settlement discussion 
may be initiated by the Office of For-
eign Assets Control, the alleged viola-
tor, or the alleged violator’s authorized 
representative. For a description of 
practices with respect to settlement, 
see appendix A to part 501 of this chap-
ter. 

(d) Guidelines. Guidelines for the im-
position or settlement of civil pen-
alties by the Office of Foreign Assets 
Control are contained in Appendix A to 
part 501 of this chapter. 

(e) Representation. A representative of 
the alleged violator may act on behalf 
of the alleged violator, but any oral 
communication with the Office of For-
eign Assets Control prior to a written 
submission regarding the specific alle-
gations contained in the Pre-Penalty 
Notice must be preceded by a written 
letter of representation, unless the 
Pre-Penalty Notice was served upon 
the alleged violator in care of the rep-
resentative. 

§ 561.703 Penalty imposition. 

If, after considering any timely writ-
ten response to the Pre-Penalty Notice 
and any relevant facts, the Office of 
Foreign Assets Control determines 
that there was a violation by the al-
leged violator named in the Pre-Pen-
alty Notice and that a civil monetary 
penalty is appropriate, the Office of 
Foreign Assets Control may issue a 
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